



## **ALDERBURY BOWLS CLUB CONSTITUTION**

### **1. Title**

The club shall be called Alderbury Bowls Club, hereafter to be referred to as “the Club” and shall be affiliated to Bowls England and Bowls Wiltshire.

### **2. Objects**

To foster and promote the sport of flat green bowls at all levels, providing opportunities for recreation and competition.

### **3. Membership**

**3.1** Membership of the Club shall be open to any person, regardless of race, age, gender, sexual orientation, religious belief or ability, who completes a membership form and pays the relevant subscription/joining fee as determined by the Club by the 1st April each year. Late payment will incur a charge of £10.

**3.2** The Club Committee may refuse membership or remove it, only for good cause such as conduct likely to bring the Club or sport into disrepute. Appeal against refusal or removal may be made to the members. If consideration of removal of membership is as result of a disciplinary issue, the procedure to be adopted shall be that as set out In Bowls England Regulation 9

#### **3.2.1 Classes:**

Full Member

Junior Member (in Full Time education)

Social Member

Life Member

### **4. Officers**

*The officers of the Club shall be:*

President/Chairperson

Treasurer

Men's Captain & Ladies' Captain  
Club Secretary & Ladies' Secretary  
Social Secretary  
Match Secretary  
Greenkeeper

## **5. Election of Officers**

**5.1** All Officers shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Club, from and by the Members.

**5.2** All Officers are elected for a period of one year, but may be re-elected to the same office or another office the following year.

## **6. General Committee**

The affairs of the Club shall be controlled by the General Committee comprising the Executive Officers and any other Member deemed necessary elected from and by the AGM. The General Committee shall meet at agreed intervals and not less than four times a year.

**6.1** *The duties of the General Committee shall be:*

**6.1.1** To control the affairs of the Club on behalf of the Members.

**6.1.2** To keep accurate accounts of the finances of the Club through the Treasurer. These should be available for reasonable inspection by Members and should be examined by the appointed accounts examiner before every AGM. The Club shall maintain a bank current account. Any cheques drawn against the Club funds should be signed by the Treasurer and one other Officer.

**6.1.3** To co-opt additional members to the Committee as the Committee feels necessary. Co-opted members shall not be entitled to vote on the Committee.

**6.1.4** To make decisions on the basis of a single majority vote. In the case of equal votes, the Chairperson shall be entitled to a second and casting vote.

**6.1.5** To appoint Sub-Committees as necessary to fulfil the Club's business.

## **7. General Meetings**

The Annual General Meeting shall be held not later than the end of October each year. Twenty-One clear day's written notice shall be given of the AGM by circulating a copy of the notice to every member by email and posting the notice on the Club Notice Board. Members must advise the Secretary in writing of any business to be considered at the AGM at least 14 days before a meeting. The Secretary shall circulate by email and display in the Clubhouse notice of the agenda for the meeting to Members not less than 7 days before the meeting.

**7.1** *The business of the AGM meeting shall be to:-*

**7.1.1** Confirm the minutes of the previous AGM Meeting and any General Meetings held since the last AGM.

**7.1.2** Receive the examined accounts for the year from the Treasurer.

**7.1.3** Receive the annual report of the Committee from the Secretary.

**7.1.4** Elect an accounts examiner.

**7.1.5** Elect the Officers and Committee Members of the Club.

**7.1.6** Transact such other business received, in writing, by the Secretary from members 14 days prior to the meeting and included on the agenda.

**7.2** The Committee shall call a Special General Meeting upon a written request addressed to the [Honorary] Secretary signed by at least 6 members. The Committee shall meet within 21 days of the request in order to call a SGM. The Committee shall give fourteen days notice, in writing, of any such Special General Meeting. The discussion at such meeting shall be confined to the business stated in the notice sent to members.

**7.3** Nominations of candidates for election of Officers shall be made, in writing, to the Secretary at least 14 days in advance of the AGM date.

**7.4** At all general Meetings, the Chair will be taken by the President/Chairperson or, in their absence, by a deputy appointed by the Members attending the meeting.

**7.5** Decisions made at a General Meeting shall be by a simple majority of votes from those Full Members attending the meeting. In the event of equal votes, the President or Chairperson shall be entitled to a second and additional casting vote.

**7.6** A quorum for a General Meeting shall be 20 members of the Club.

**7.7** Each member shall be entitled to one vote at General meetings.

## **8. Alteration to the Constitution**

Any proposed alterations to the Club's Constitution may only be considered at the Annual or Special general meeting convened with the required written notice of the proposal. Any alteration or amendment must be duly proposed and seconded. Such alterations shall be passed if supported by not less than two-thirds of those Members present at the meeting, assuming that a quorum has been achieved.

## **9. Indemnity Clause**

Each member of the Club shall (to the extent that such person is not entitled to recover under any policy of insurance) be entitled to be indemnified out of all funds available to the Club which may lawfully be so applied against all costs, expenses and liabilities whatsoever reasonably incurred by such person in the proper execution and or incurred in good faith in the purported discharge of such duties, save in any such case where any such costs, expenses and liabilities arise in connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust, provided that any such member so indemnified has been properly authorised in relation to the duties undertaken on behalf of the Club by the General Committee.

## **10. Dissolution**

**10.1** If, at any General meeting of the Club, a resolution be passed calling for dissolution of the Club, the Secretary shall immediately convene a Special General Meeting to be held

not less than one month thereafter to discuss and vote on the resolution.

**10.2** If, at that Special General Meeting, the resolution is carried by at least two-thirds of the members present, the Committee shall thereupon, or at such date as shall have been specified in the resolution, proceed to realise the assets of the Club and discharge all debts and liabilities of the Club.

**10.3** After discharging all debts and liabilities of the Club, the remaining assets shall not be paid or distributed amongst the Members of the Club but shall be given or transferred to some other voluntary organisation having similar objects.

Appendix A to  
Alderbury Bowls Club Constitution  
dated 9th April 2017

**Children**

Alderbury Bowls Club is committed to promoting a safe environment in which children and vulnerable adults can enjoy taking part in games of bowls. It will seek to underpin and ensure this commitment by following and promoting the Child Protection Policy of Bowls England.

**Misconduct**

Alderbury Bowls Club follows **Bowls England Regulation No 9,( as approved 23 November 2013) in all disciplinary matters.**

**Health and Safety**

Alderbury Bowls Club follows **Bowls England Topics 26a-d, Issue D, April 2013**

**Insurance**

Alderbury Bowls Club is fully insured as required by Law.



## **ALDERBURY BOWLS AND SOCIAL CLUB RULES**

### **RULE 1 NAME AND ADDRESS**

The name of the club shall be the Alderbury Bowls and Social Club and the club premises shall be situated at Rectory Road, Alderbury, Salisbury, SP5 3AD.

### **RULE 2 OBJECTS**

The objects of the club shall be:-

- a.** To promote, foster and safeguard the amateur level green game of bowls for male and female members in Alderbury and the surrounding area.
- b.** To adopt and enforce the Rules of the game as laid down for the time being by the sport's governing bodies. To promote good fellowship, entertainment and social facilities for the benefit of its members and to provide a place where suitable refreshments and amenities are available.
- c.** The Alderbury Bowling Club is committed to promoting a safe environment in which children and vulnerable adults can enjoy taking part in games of bowls. It will seek to underpin and ensure this commitment by following and promoting the joint Child Protection Policy and Procedures of the National Governing Bodies.

### **RULE 3 ADMINISTRATION**

- a.** The affairs of the club shall be conducted by a General Committee comprising the President/Chairperson, Honorary Secretary, Honorary Treasurer, Secretary of the Ladies, Section, Honorary Match Secretary, Green-keeper, Men's Captain, Ladies Captain, Social Committee Chairperson and House and Bar Committee, Chairperson; each of these representatives shall be entitled to one vote. The President may attend any sub-committee meeting as a non-voting member. The positions of President/Chairperson, Honorary Secretary, Honorary Treasurer, Honorary Match Secretary, Green-Keeper, Social Committee Chairperson

and House and Bar Chairperson shall be open to any full bowling club member.

**b.** The General Committee shall appoint a Child Protection Officer each year at its first meeting after the AGM. He/she will be expected to attend, at the Club's expense, relevant training courses in child protection issues and practice and keep abreast of developments, which will be a condition of the appointment. The Child Protection Officer shall be entitled to attend any Committee Meeting for the purpose of carrying out the responsibility. He/She will be responsible for the review of the ***Child Protection and Safety Policy Guidelines*** at the Annual General Meeting (AGM). A current statement of the Club's Policy will be displayed in the Club at all times and members must make themselves aware of the Policy and carry out its recommendations when in the company of children/disabled persons.

**c. Indemnity Clause** - Each member of the club shall (to the extent that such person is not entitled to recover under any policy of insurance) be entitled to be indemnified out of any and all funds available to the Club, which may lawfully be so applied, against all costs, expenses and liabilities whatsoever incurred by such person in the proper execution and discharge of duties undertaken on behalf of the Club or arising therefrom, or incurred in good faith in the purported discharge of such duties.

#### **RULE 4 ELECTIONS**

**a.** All those named in Rule 3 shall hold office for one year except the President who shall serve for two years. All shall be eligible for re-election.

**b.** The General Committee has the power to fill casual vacancies. The person appointed shall hold office until the next AGM.

**c.** At General Committee meetings, six members shall form a quorum.

**d.** All elections shall take place at the October AGM each year. In addition to the election of officers to the General Committee, an election will take place for the representative to the Mixed Triples League.



**e.** All elected positions may be contested. All prospective candidates shall be properly proposed and seconded. In the event that there is no nominee for any office, the Chairperson shall be authorised to seek nominations from the members at the meeting.

**f.** The gentlemen bowling members of the club shall elect the Men's Captain and Vice Captain. The Lady bowling members of the club shall elect the Secretary of the Ladies' section, Ladies' Captain, Ladies' Vice Captain and Ladies' Treasurer.

## **RULE 5 MANAGEMENT**

**a.** The General Committee shall be vested with the Management responsibility for the club, trans-act the ordinary business of the club and regulate the opening and closing of the green. It shall have the power to make bye-laws not inconsistent with the rules of the club, to make all contracts to appoint and dismiss any servants of the club and to fill any vacancy caused by death, retirement or resignation of any officer or member of 'The General Committee' of the club.

**b.** The Treasurer shall keep account of all monies received on behalf of the club and shall submit a statement at the General Committee meetings. He/She shall prepare an Income and Expenditure Account and a statement of Assets and Liabilities at the end of the financial year. These accounts shall be on a Receipts and Payment basis and verified by an Independent Examiner(s), appointed by the AGM. The Examiner(s) shall be entitled to make a reasonable service charge. The financial year shall end on 31<sup>st</sup> December each year.

**c.** No member may, in the name of and at the expense of the club, incur any debt or other liability without the express authority of the General Committee.

**d.** Under the terms and conditions of the Club Insurance no member may retain a cash balance away from the Club premises of more than £300 except in transit to the Club's Account at the bank. All Club monies must be paid directly into the Club's account.

## **RULE 6 COMMITTEE**

- a.** The General Committee shall meet on such days and at such times as shall be determined.
- b.** The General Committee shall at its first meeting in each year elect a Green Committee of three members and a House and Bar Committee of three members.
- c.** The general Committee shall be served by the following sub-committees who will elect a Chairperson at the first meeting: -
- (i) *Emergency Committee.*** The Chairperson shall call upon such members as required who shall be tasked with making decisions on specific matters which require actioning before the next scheduled meeting of the General Committee.
  - (ii) *Green Committee.*** Comprising three members who shall be responsible for the maintenance of the green and its environs.
  - (iii) *House and Bar Committee.*** Comprising three members who shall be responsible for the management of the club buildings and bar and shall ensure that the fabric of the building and its furnishings are kept in good repair. The Chairperson will attend General Committee meetings.
  - (iv) *Ladies' Committee.*** Comprising those lady members elected by the ladies at a properly constituted meeting of the same who shall be responsible for the administration for those matters specific to the ladies' section. The Ladies' Secretary will attend the General Committee meetings.
  - (v) *Social Committee.*** Comprising three members elected at a General Meeting who shall be responsible for the organisation of all Club's social and non-bowling fund raising activities. The Chairperson will attend General Committee meetings
  - (vi) *Selection Committee.*** Comprising the Men's Captain and Vice Captain, Ladies' Captain and Vice Captain who shall be responsible for all matters relating to the playing of the game of bowls and the overseeing of all team selections.
- d.** Each of the sub-committees may co-opt such other members, as circumstances require.

## **RULE 7 SUBSCRIPTIONS**

- a.** The annual subscription payable on or before the Spring General Meeting each year shall be sums for bowling and social

membership determined by the General Committee and submitted for approval at the Autumn General Meeting each year. Any new members being accepted after the Spring General Meeting shall pay a subscription set by the General Committee.

**b.** Members having paid their subscriptions will be considered to have submitted to the Rules of the club and will be supplied a copy of the Rules by the Secretary.

**c.** The club maintains the right to restrict the participation in club activities of any member who has not paid his or her subscription by the Spring General Meeting each year.

**d.** Any member whose subscription has not been paid by the Spring General Meeting shall cease to be a member. Extenuating circumstances must be submitted in writing and will be considered by the General Committee for a decision.

**e.** The fees payable by visitors and temporary members shall be such a sum as the General Committee shall determine from time to time.

## **RULE 8 MEMBERSHIP**

**a.** The General Committee shall elect persons to the club and shall have the power to refuse membership without assigning reasons thereto. The Application Form for Membership detailing the name and address of any person applying for membership of the club shall be displayed on the notice board for at least seven days before it is considered. In the event that the Club Secretary receives no written objections within seven days, applications for membership may be approved by the President/Chairperson and one Committee member to avoid undue delay. Every application for bowling membership must be correctly proposed and seconded by bowling members.

**b.** The General Committee reserves to itself the right to limit the number of members at any time.

**c.** Any member objecting to a nomination for membership must immediately give a written notice to the Honorary Secretary.

**d.** There are three categories of Membership:-

- (i)** - Full Playing Member (herein after called "member")
- (ii)** - Junior Playing Member (under 18 years)
- (iii)** - Social Member

## **RULE 9 CONDUCT OF MEMBERS**

If a complaint is received alleging that a member's conduct, either inside or outside the club premises is contrary to the interests of the club and injurious to its reputation, the procedures given in Appendix A are to be followed in accordance with the principles of natural justice.

## **RULE 10 GENERAL MEETINGS**

- a.** There shall be at least two general meetings of the club in each year. Fourteen days notice of all general meetings shall be given. Twenty members shall form a quorum. The Annual General Meeting shall normally be held in the month of October. The business transacted at the Spring General Meeting shall include the presentation of the audited accounts and any other business, notice of which must be given to the Secretary at least seven days before the meeting.
- b.** Special General Meetings may be summoned as a result of a General Committee resolution or on the written request of eight members to the Secretary stating clearly the matter at issue and bearing their signatures. The calling notice for a Special General Meeting shall state the purpose for which the meeting has been summoned. No other business shall be transacted at the meeting and a quorum shall be as that for an AGM.
- c.** At all General Meetings of the club every member shall be entitled to be present and cast one vote and no more on any matter put to the vote. In the case of equality of votes, the Chairperson of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote. Social members shall not vote on any question appertaining to the game of bowls.
- d.** The Secretary shall place on the notice board by the 15<sup>th</sup> August each year, a notice listing all offices for which elections will be held at the coming AGM. Each office shall have space for the nominee, proposer, seconder and signature of acceptance of the nominee.

## **RULE 11 PERMITTED BAR OPENING HOURS**

- a.** The permitted bar opening hours for the sale of intoxicating liquor specified by the local council and amended from time to time

are Monday to Saturday *10 a.m. to 11 p.m.* ; Sundays and Good Fridays. *12 to 10.30 p.m.*; Christmas Day from *12 to 3 p.m.* and *7 to 10.30 p.m.* Members and guests purchasing intoxicating liquor must be 18 years of age or over and guests shall be signed in under **Rule 14.**

**b.** In accordance with the licensing laws and this Club Rule, Bona Fide junior members of Alderbury Bowls Club aged 8 to 17 years may be served non-alcoholic drinks or refreshments from the bar without being accompanied by an adult.

## **RULE 12 OPENING OF CLUB PREMISES**

**a.** The club shall be opened and prepared to receive members and guests at the discretion of the General Committee.

**b.** The club shall not be loaned or hired to any Association Club or Member without the consent of the House and Bar Committee. The hire charge shall be determined by that committee in line with a scale of charges approved by the General Committee.

## **RULE 13 CONDUCT**

**a.** Members playing are required, so far as games in progress permit, to give other members desiring to play the facility for joining a game. No member may monopolise the green for more than one game if other members are waiting to play. As soon as two or more members enter the green they may commence to play, and if they wish to continue, shall do so provided five or more ends have been played and there are other rinks available. Other players must take it in turn until all rinks are full. Junior Playing Members may take their turn with other members. This will not apply when bona fide matches are taking place.

**b.** Casual players not being members of a bowls club must play with a bowling member.

## **RULE 14 VISITORS**

**a.** Members may introduce and entertain visitors at the club and there shall be kept in the club premises a visitors book in which the member and visitor shall sign. The member introducing a visitor

must accompany him/her and shall be responsible for the visitor strictly observing club rules. No member may sign in more than two visitors per day and the admission of such visitors shall only be valid for the session in which they are signed in. The same visitor may not be signed in more than five times a year.

**b.** *Section 49 of the Licensing Act 1964* is hereby invoked and any visiting Bowls Club or other group attending a bona-fide meeting or function with the approval of the General Committee, may be permitted to buy intoxicating drinks for consumption on the premises during the hours specified in *Rule 11*.

## **RULE 15 ALTERATION OF RULES**

**a.** No alteration of rules shall be carried out except by a two-thirds majority of those present at a general meeting.

**b.** The nature of any such proposed alteration must be notified to the Honorary Secretary at least 23 days prior to such a general meeting.

## **RULE 16 DISSOLUTION**

The club shall dissolve upon the vote of three fourths majority of all voting members present at a Special General Meeting of the Club called in accordance with *Rule 10*. Upon dissolution the property of the club shall be vested in two Trustees chosen by that meeting who shall then take the necessary steps to dispose of the club's property.

## **BYE-LAWS**

### **1. DRESS**

a. All players and markers shall conform to the dress code as defined below. The Club Secretary, Ladies' Secretary or Men's/ Ladies Captains can advise on approved patterns.

#### **Whites - *Men and Ladies*<sup>1</sup>**

Approved bowling footwear

Regulation White/Cream trousers, Skirts, Culottes or Shorts (**NO JEANS**)

Approved pattern plain White/Cream pullover, waistcoat fleece, or jacket.

Approved coloured club shirt.

#### **Greys - *Men and Ladies*<sup>2</sup>**

As above but in Grey.

a. Greys will be worn for all evening matches and club competition rounds. Whites will be worn for all afternoon matches and club competition finals.

**Westbrook Triples matches** - Greys plus club shirt to be worn for all matches whether played during the day or evening.

Any exception will be notified on selection team sheets or specific competition rules.

b. Sandals are not permitted under any circumstances.

c. Club night and roll ups, smart casual dress.

### **2. SELECTION**

a. The Men's Captain and Vice Captain, Ladies' Captain and Vice Captain shall constitute the Selection Committee and shall be jointly responsible for all mixed team selections for indoor games as well as all outdoor mixed friendly matches. They shall also be responsible for the administration of the club competitions.

---

<sup>1</sup>As amended at the AGM 30th Oct 2017

<sup>2</sup>As amended at the AGM 30th Oct 2017

**b. Men's Indoor Competitions** – Teams to be selected by the Men's Captain, Vice Captain and one other experienced regular Indoor Bowler, to be appointed annually by the General Committee, at the first meeting after the AGM.

**c.** At the Spring General Meeting, elections shall take place for the members who will serve with the above to perform the selection duties for individual leagues as outlined in the following paragraphs:-

**d. Salisbury and District Triples League**

**(i) Alderbury 1** - Three selectors from and by those players who have opted to play for the team.

**Alderbury 2** - Three selectors from and by those players who have opted to play for that team.

**(ii) Ladies Triples League** - Three selectors elected from and by those players who have opted to play for that team.

**Note:** - *In all of the above the Captain and Vice Captain shall take one of the three available places in the squad for which they opt to play and the number of elected members reduced accordingly.*

**(iii) Wilts 4 Rink League** – A selection committee comprising the three Alderbury 1 selectors and one Alderbury 2 selector. (If either the Captain or the Vice Captain has elected to play for Alderbury 2 he shall be the If both have opted to play for Alderbury 2, they both shall serve).

**(iv) Mixed Triples League** – A Selection committee comprising the Vice Captain, Lady Vice Captain and the elected Mixed Triples League representative.

**e.** These committees shall meet at least once a week during the outdoor season at an agreed time and as necessary during the closed season.

**f.** Three members shall form a quorum in the above committees. Should the quorum not be fulfilled, a serving bowling



officer or officers shall be requested to attend the meeting for the purpose of team selection.

**g.** Members and Junior Playing Members will be invited to enter their names on the availability lists displayed for all league and friendly matches from which teams will then be selected within the proposed guidelines.

**(i) Wilts 4 Rink League** – To be selected for the strongest available team and shall have priority over any other game.

**(ii) Salisbury and District Triples League** - Alderbury 1, Alderbury 2 and Ladies Triple League Team to be selected for the strongest available team.

**(iii) Mixed Triples League** - To be selected within the guidelines of the competition rules to include as many non-league players as possible.

**(iv) Friendlies** - To attempt to select a balanced team and give as many players as possible match opportunities.

**Note:** *All friendly matches should be selected and posted on the match notice board at least four days prior to the fixture. If at this time the availability list does not have sufficient names, the selection committee shall either:-*

**(i)** cancel the fixture if the task seems hopeless or

**(ii)** publish the available names as playing.

If two days before the match a full side is still not available the match Secretary should be asked to contact the opposition to make other arrangements if possible or to cancel the match. If the match is cancelled, the Captain should ensure that all players whose names were published are contacted and advised of the cancellation.

### **3. COMPETITION RULES**

**a.** Club Competitions are open to Members and Junior Playing Members

**b.** The Selection Committee shall adjudicate on any disputed points.

- c. The Selection Committee shall make a draw for each competition not later than 31st May. It shall set ample dates for completion of each round of competitions.
- d. The first named person(s) shall be deemed the challenger(s) within **SEVEN DAYS** of the commencement of any round. A mutually agreed date and time for the game shall be arranged. Should neither party(s) agree a date and time the matter must be referred in writing to the Club selection Committee, whose decision shall be final.
- e. Rounds must be completed by the dates stated. Defaulters will be eliminated.
- e(i) All finals matches are to be played on the designated finals weekend, Saturday or Sunday. If for unforeseen circumstances - (e.g due to illness, work commitment or County Matches) a player/ team is unable to play on finals weekend a mutually agreed date should be arranged either **7 days** preceding or seven days following Finals weekend. If a date within this time span cannot be agreed the defaulting player/team (i.e the player/team who was unable to play on the Finals weekend will forfeit the game). The time span of **14 days** is to be strictly adhered to and no leeway permitted. It was agreed that in future the Match Secretary will publish the Finals Weekend date at the AGM
- f. Trophies shall be returned the Secretary upon request.
- g. **Games**
- (i) **Singles (Championship) Men and Ladies** – games shall consist of 21 shots, 4 bowls per player.
- (ii) **Singles (Handicap)** - games shall be 21 shots for the lower handicapped player and 21 + the difference in handicap for the higher handicapped player, 4 bowls per player. The handicap will be set, for each player, by the Selection Committee each year.
- (iii) **Singles (Two Wood)** –
- a) Men's – games shall consist of 21 shots, 2 bowls per-player.
- b) Ladies – games shall consist of 21 ends, 2 bowls per-player

(iv) **Singles (Novices)** – games shall consist 21 shots, 4 bowls per player. No player may enter who has won a singles bowling competition.

(v) **Pairs** – games shall consist of 21 ends, 4 bowls per player. The Captain & his Selectors shall determine the pairs for the competition on an ability basis together with the draw for partners and opponents. Pairs will play in the position they are selected, Skips as indicated will make the required arrangements as per **Rule 3c**.

(vi) **Triples** – games shall consist of 12 ends, (except the final which shall be 18 ends), 3 bowls per player. The Selection Committee shall determine the teams for the competition on an ability basis together with the draw for partners and opponents.

(vii) **Singles (Over Sixties)** – games shall consist 21 shots, 4 bowls per player. Each player shall be sixty or over on 1st April in the year of entry.

(viii) **Invitation Pairs** – games shall consist of 21 ends, 4 bowls per player. Each team will comprise a Lady Skip and an invited man lead.

#### 4. **SMOKING**

Members smoking on the green must not drop matches, cigars, cigarette ends or pipe ash on the green.

#### 5. **DOGS**

Dogs shall at all times be kept on a lead and not allowed onto the green. To conform with the *Health and Safety at Work Act*, all dogs (with the exception of Guide Dogs) are barred from the Clubhouse at all times.

#### 6. **GREEN FEES**

Green fees will be set by the General Committee.

## **7. MOBILE PHONES<sup>3</sup>**

**The use of Mobile Phone on The Green is not permitted.**

---

<sup>3</sup> "The Green" means the grass to the side of the playing area where there is a receptacle for cigarette ends

Appendix A to  
Alderbury Bowls Club Rules  
dated 9th April 2017

**DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES**

Follow the Procedures as laid down in Bowls England Regulation 9